REPUBLIC OF KENYA



THE NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

ELEVENTH PARLIAMENT - FIFTH SESSION - 2017

DEPARTMENTAL COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND NATIONAL SECURITY

REPORT ON THE CONSIDERATION OF A PETITION BY THE FAMILY OF THE LATE HAGGAI CHIMAKILE MULATI ON THE ALLEGED KILLING OF HAGGAI CHIMAKILE MULATI BY POLICE OFFICERS/POLICE RESERVISTS

DIRECTORATE OF COMMITTEE SERVICES CLERK'S CHAMBERS PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS NAIROBI

JUNE, 2017

Table of contents

1.0 PREFACE
1.1 Mandate of the Committee
1.2 Committee subjects
1.3 Oversight
1.4 Members of the Committee
1.5 Recommendations
2.0 INTRODUCTION11
3.0 SUBMISSIONS
3.1 Submission by the Hon Chris Wamalwa, MP on behalf of the petitioners 12
3.2 Submissions by the Cabinet Secretary Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government
3.3 Submissions by the Independent Policing Oversight Authority
4.0 COMMITTEE OBSERVATIONS14
5.0 COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION15

Chairperson's foreword

The Petition by the family of the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati on the alleged killing of Haggai Chimakile Mulati by police officers/ reservists was tabled before the House pursuant to Standing Order No. 225 (2) (a) by Hon. Chris Wamalwa, MP on behalf of the petitioners.

In considering the Petition, the Committee held meetings with the Hon. Chris Wamalwa, MP. The Committee also received submissions for the Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government and the Independent Policing Oversight Authority the meeting and submissions were aimed at responding to the issues raised in the petition.

The Committee is thankful to the Office of the Speaker and the Clerk of the National Assembly for the logistical and technical support accorded to it during its Sittings. The Committee is also thankful to the Hon. Chris Wamalwa, MP, the Independent Policing Oversight Authority and the Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government for the submissions they made.

On behalf of the Committee, and pursuant to Standing Order, 227 it is my pleasant duty to table the Report of the Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security on the alleged killing of Haggai Chimakile Mulati by police officers/reservists

The Hon. Asman Kamama, MGH, OGW, MP Chairperson Departmental Committee Administration and National Security

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to respond to the prayers sought by the family of the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati on his alleged killing by police officers/ reservists. In considering the petition, the Committee held meetings with the Hon. Chris Wamalwa, MP, behalf of the petitioners. The Committee also received submissions for the Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government and the Independent Policing Oversight Authority. Through the oral and written submissions the Committee responded to the issues raised in the petition.

The Committee noted that the circumstances leading to the death of Mr. Haggai Chimakile were unclear and required further investigations. Further the Independent Policing Oversight Authority was seized of the matter and investigations on the same were on going and the case file would be forwarded to the Director of Public Prosecution once the investigations were completed.

Committee recommends that the Independent Policing Oversight Authority should expedite investigations into the death of Haggai Mulati Chimakile and submit a progress report to the Committee within twenty-one (21) days from the date of this Report. The Committee also recommends to the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Lands, Housing and Urban Development that the National Land Commission should investigate the ownership of Luore Nyoio farm LR 34610/7 situated within Kitale town.

1.0 PREFACE

1.1 Mandate of the Committee

The Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security is established pursuant to the provisions of Standing Order No. 216 (1) and (5) with the following terms of reference:-

- (i) make reports and recommendations to the House as often as possible, including recommendation of proposed legislation;
- (ii) to investigate, inquire into, and report on all matters relating to the mandate, management, activities, administration, operations and estimates of the assigned Ministries and departments;
- (iii)to study the programme and policy objectives of Ministries and departments and the effectiveness of the implementation;
- (iv)to study, access and analyze the relative success of the Ministries and departments as measured by the results obtained as compared with their stated objectives;
- (v) to investigate and inquire into all matters relating to the assigned Ministries and departments as they may deem necessary, and as may be referred to them by the House or a Minister.
- (vi)study and review all legislation referred to it

1.2 Committee subjects

The Committee is mandated to consider the following subjects:-

- i. National security
- ii. Police services
- iii. Public Administration
- iv. Public Service
- v. Prisons
- vi. Immigration
- vii. management of natural disasters

1.3 Oversight

In executing its mandate, the Committee oversees the following Government Departments and agencies, namely: -

- i. The Presidency
- The State Department of Interior
- iii. The State Department for Coordination of National Government
- iv. The Public Service Commission,

NA: DC Administration and National Security Report on the consideration of a petition by the family of the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati on the alleged killing of Haggai Chimakile Mulati by the police/police reservists

- The National Police Service Commission
- The Independent Police Oversight Authority > .2

1.4 Members of the Committee

Chairperson The Hon. Asman Kamama, MGH, OGW, MP

Vice Chairperson The Hon. Alois M. Lentoimaga, MP

Members The Hon. Joseph Lekuton, MP

The Hon. Alice Wahome, MP

The Hon. Zakayo K. Cheruiyot, MP

The Hon. Timothy W. Wetangula, MP

The Hon. Patrick Ole Ntutu, MP

The Hon. Ali Isaack Shaaban, MP

The Hon. Samuel Moroto, MP

The Hon. (Dr.) Humphrey Njuguna, MP

The Hon. Francis K. Mwangangi, MP

The Hon. Rashid J. Bedzimba, MP

The Hon. David Gikaria, MP

The Hon. Mohamed Shidiye, MP

The Hon. Jane Machira, MP

The Hon. Ibrahim Abdi Saney, MP

The Hon. Joseph O. Ndiege, MP

The Hon. Wanjiku Muhia, MP

The Hon. Akuja Protus Ewesit, MP

The Hon. Joseph M. Kahangara, MP

The Hon. Grace Kiptui, MP

The Hon. George Theuri, MP

The Hon. James Bett, MP

The Hon. Benard Shinali, MP

The Hon Charles Nyamai, MP

The Hon Fatuma Ibrahim Ali, MP

The Hon. (Dr.) Makali Mulu, MP

The Hon Peter Kaluma, MP

The Hon. James Opiyo Wandayi, MP

Committee Secretariat

Clerk Assistant IMr. Leonard MachiraClerk Assistant IIMs. Rose M. WanjohiClerk Assistant IIIMs. Hellen LokwangLegal Counsel IIMs. Christine Odhiambo

Researcher III Ms. Fiona Musili

Fiscal Analyst III Mr. Edison Odhiambo

1.5 Recommendations

In response to the prayers by the petitioners, the Committee recommends that: -

- 1. The Independent Policing Oversight Authority should expedite investigations into the death of Haggai Mulati Chimakile and submit a progress report to the Committee within twenty-one (21) days from the date of this Report.
- 2. The Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Lands, Housing and Urban Development through the National Land Commission investigates the ownership of Luore Nyoio farm LR 34610/7 situated within Kitale town.

2.0 INTRODUCTION

- 2.1 The Petitioners wished to draw to the attention of the House on the following, that:
 - On 27th January 2017, while herding cattle at his father's home in Meso farm in Kiminini Constituency, the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati of ID NO. 32882209 was allegedly shot dead by Police/Kenya Police Reservists(KPR) under mysterious circumstances;
 - ii. It was alleged that the young man met his death in an attack by the Police/KPR who were evicting residents of Meso Farm due to a land dispute;
- iii. This eviction was being conducted without the knowledge or involvement of the area Chief or local administration;
- iv. The killing was a gross violation of article 26(3) of the Constitution on right to life;
- v. Efforts to address and resolve the matter had been futile; and
- vi. The issues in respect of the Petition were not pending before any court of law, tribunal, constitutional or legal body.

The petitioners prayed that the National Assembly, through the Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security

- Recommends that the National Police Commission and the Independent Policing Oversight Authority(IPOA) investigates the circumstances behind the alleged killing and recommend necessary action including bringing those culpable to book;
- Recommends that the National Land Commission looks into the matter of Meso Land dispute and makes the necessary recommendations;
- iii. Recommends that the National Police Service Commission and IPOA look into the matter of compensation for the bereaved family for their loss; and
- iv. Makes any other order or direction that it deems fir in the circumstances of the cases

3.0 SUBMISSIONS

3.1 Submission by the Hon Chris Wamalwa, MP on behalf of the petitioners

The Committee held a meeting with the Hon Chris Wamalwa, MP on 21st March 2017. During the meeting, the Honourable member informed the Committee that on 27th January 2017, while herding cattle at his father's home in Meso Farm in Kiminini Constituency, Haggai Chimakile Mulati of was shot dead by Police/Kenya Police Reservists (KPR) under mysterious circumstances.

It was alleged that the deceased met his death in an attack by the Police/KPR who were evicting residents of Meso Farm due to a land dispute. He added that the eviction was being conducted without the knowledge or involvement of the area Chief or local administration

The Hon. Chris Wamalwa, MP requested that Committee fast tracks the investigations by the Independent Policing Oversight Authority (IPOA) on the circumstances behind the alleged killing and recommend necessary action including bringing those culpable to book.

3.2 Submissions by the Cabinet Secretary Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government

The Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government in written submissions stated that on 27th January, 2017 at about 9:30am the Officer in Charge Crime Branch Kitale Police Station received a call from Mr. Barry Odongo Okundi, Director, Luore Nyoio Limited. Mr. Barry Odongo claimed that 200-armed people had invaded the company owned farm LR No. 34610/7 situated within Kitale Municipality and set ablaze a store containing shelled maize and killed four sheep. Police officers, accompanied by Police Reservists proceeded to the farm to calm the situation down and found the grain store on fire. They requested the over 200 rowdy youth armed with pangas and other weapons due to a court order, case no. 111 of 2008. However a section of the crowd started pelting the police with stones.

During the ensuing melee, two officers including IP Jane Dalidi were injured and treated at Cheranganyi Nursing Home while motor vehicle registration Number GK A118G was damaged. Unfortunately Mr. Haggai Mulati who was one of the attackers was fatally injured by a stray bullet and his body removed to Kiminini Cottage Hospital Mortuary. Another alleged attacker, Mr. Stephen Wekesa sustained injuries and was taken to Cheranganyi Nursing Home where he was treated and discharged.

The District Criminal Investigation Officer, Kitale commenced investigations into the incident and all firearms used during the violent confrontation were retrieved from the officers and taken to Directorate of Criminal Investigations Ballistics section for examination. Pursuant to the investigations, Inquest File No. 1/2017 was opened and is pending investigations.

3.3 Submissions by the Independent Policing Oversight Authority

The Independent Policing Oversight Authority in written submission dated Thursday 25th May 2017, informed the Committee that it commenced investigations into the death of Haggai Mulati Chimakile after the incident was highlighted in the media and receiving a formal complaint through the Kenya National Commission on Human Rights. The Committee was further informed that a team of officers from the Authority visited the scene on 1st February 2017 and recorded statement from five witnesses. The Authority also obtained medical report of three persons who were injured during the incident.

The Authority further stated that investigations on the matter were on going and the file would be forwarded to the Director of Public Prosecutions once the investigations were completed.

4.0 COMMITTEE OBSERVATIONS

The Committee made the following observations from evidence adduced in the meetings, that:-

- 1. The circumstances leading to the death of Mr. Haggai Chimakile were unclear and required further investigations.
- 2. The Independent Policing Oversight Authority was seized of the matter and investigations on the same were on going and the file would be forwarded to the Director of Public Prosecution once the investigations were completed.
- 3. The ownership of Luore Nyoio farm LR 34610/7 situated within Kitale town appeared to be the main cause of conflict and confrontation leading to the death of Mr. Haggai Chimakile.

6.0 COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

In response to the prayers by the petitioners, the Committee recommends that: -

- 1. The Independent Policing Oversight Authority should expedite investigations into the death of Haggai Mulati Chimakile and submit a progress report to the Committee within twenty-one (21) days from the date of this Report.
- 2. The Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Lands, Housing and Urban Development through the National Land Commission investigates the ownership of Luore Nyoio farm LR 34610/7 situated within Kitale town.

Signed Camaning trasman Date 13 06 2017

Hon. Asman Kamama, MGH, OGW, MP

Chairman, Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security

We, Members of the Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security have pursuant to Standing Order 227 (2) adopted this report on the consideration of a Petition by the family of late Haggai Chimakile Mulati, resident of Kiminini Constituency, by the police/Kenya police reservist and affix our signatures to confirm our approval and confirm its accuracy, validity and authenticity on A.M.J. as per the attached adoption list.

1. The Hon. Asman Kamama, MGH, OGW, MP - Chairperson

2. The Hon. Alois M. Lentoimaga, MP-Vice Chairperson

3. The Hon. Joseph Lekuton, MP

4. The Hon. Alice Wahome, MP

5. The Hon. Zakayo K. Cheruiyot, MP

6. The Hon. Timothy W. Wetangula, MP

7. The Hon. Patrick Ole Ntutu, MP

8. The Hon, Ali Isaack Shaaban, MP

9. The Hon. Samuel Moroto, MP

10. The Hon. (Dr.) Humphrey Njuguna, MP

11. The Hon. Francis K. Mwangangi, MP

12. The Hon. Rashid J. Bedzimba, MP

13. The Hon, David Gikaria, MP

14. The Hon. Mohamed Shidiye, MP

15. The Hon. Jane Machira, MP	Af Aprils
16. The Hon. Charles Nyamai, MP	
17. The Hon. Joseph O. Ndiege, MP	- Whin
18. The Hon. Wanjiku Muhia, MP	Buia
19. The Hon. Akuja Protus Ewesit, MP	
20. The Hon. Joseph M. Kahangara, MP	That there
21. The Hon. Ibrahim Saney, MP	
22.The Hon. Grace Kiptui, MP	
23. The Hon. George Theuri, MP	
24. The Hon. James Bett, MP	
25. The Hon. Benard Shinali, MP	The state of the s
26. The Hon. Fatuma Ibrahim Ali	
27. The Hon. (Dr.) Makali Mulu, MP	
	m
28.The Hon. Peter Kaluma, MP	
29. The Hon. James Opiyo Wandayi	

MINUTES OF THE 29TH SITTING OF THE DEPARTMENTAL COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND NATIONAL SECURITY HELD ON FRIDAY, 26TH MAY, 2017 AT SERENA HOTEL, MOMBASA AT 3.00 P.M.

PRESENT

1. The Hon. Alois Lentoimaga, MP

Vice Chairperson

- 2. The Hon. David Gikaria, MP
- 3. The Hon. Alice Wahome, MP
- 4. The Hon. Wanjiku Muhia, MP
- 5. The Hon. Opiyo Wandayi, MP
- 6. The Hon. Peter Kaluma, MP
- 7. The Hon. James Bett, MP
- 8. The Hon. Protus Akuja Ewesit, MP
- 9. The Hon. Joseph Lekuton, MP
- 10. The Hon. Mohamed Shidiye, MP
- 11. The Hon. Samuel Moroto, MP
- 12. The Hon. Zakayo Cheruiyot, MP
- 13. The Hon. Rashid Bedzimba, MP
- 14. The Hon. Jane Machira, MP
- 15. The Hon. Joseph Kahangara, MP

APOLOGIES

- 1. The Hon. Asman Kamama, MGH, OGW, MP
- Chairperson

- 2. The Hon. Dr. Makali Mulu, MP
- 3. The Hon. Fatuma Ibrahim Ali, MP
- 4. The Hon. Francis Mwangangi, MP
- 5. The Hon. Grace Kiptui, MP
- 6. The Hon. Benard Shinali, MP
- 7. The Hon. Charles Nyamai, MP
- 8. The Hon. Dr. Humphrey Njuguna, MP
- 9. The Hon. George Theuri, MP
- 10. The Hon. Joseph Ndiege, MP
- 11. The Hon. Ibrahim Abdi Saney, MP
- 12. The Hon. Shaaban Ali Isaack, MP
- 13. The Hon. Patrick Ole Ntutu, MP
- 14. The Hon. Timothy Wetangula, MP

IN ATTENDANCE- NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

1. The Hon. Kimani Ichungwa, MP

2. The Hon. Sunjeev Birdi, MP

COMMITTEE SECRETARIAT

Mrs. Florence Abonyo
 Mr. Leonard Machira
 Ms. Rose Wanjohi
 Ms. Hellen Lokwang
 Ms. Christine Odhiambo
 Ms. Fiona Musili
 Director Committees
 First Clerk Assistant I
 Clerk Assistant II
 Legal Counsel II
 Researcher III

MIN.NO.140 /ANS/2017 - PRELIMINARIES

The Chairperson called the meeting to order at 3.30 p.m. Aprayer was said

MIN.NO. 141/ANS/2017 - CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

The agenda was deferred to the next meeting.

MIN.NO. 142/ANS/2017 - MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

MIN.NO.143 /ANS/2017 - CONSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT REPORT ON PETITION BY SUK COMMUNITY REGARDING ALLEGED ILLEGAL EXISTECE OF NUMEROUS POLICE POSTS AND BARRIERS ALONG THE BORDER BETWEEN WEST POKOT AND TRAS NZOIA COUNTIES.

The Committee adopted the report and recommended that the Ministry of Interior should upgrade the existing police posts to stations and relocated the Anti stock Theft Police Unit training camp form its current location at the border of West Pokot and Trans Nzoia

The Committee further recommended that the Ministry of Interior should transfer police officers who have overstayed in West Pokot and Trans Nzoia Counties to other stations.

The Committee also recommended that the issue of allocation of land in the Chepchoina settlement scheme should be investigated by the National Land Commission

MIN.NO.144 /ANS/2017 - CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT REPORT ON PETITION BY LATE ERIC MUTHOMI REGARDING A COMPENSATION OF A FORMER POLICE OFFICER'S FAMILY (LATE ERIC MUTHOMI).

The Committee unanimously adopted the report and recommended that the Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government should release work injury compensation dues

REPUBLIC OF KENYA



THE NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

ELEVENTH PARLIAMENT – FIFTH SESSION – 2017

DEPARTMENTAL COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND NATIONAL SECURITY

REPORT ON THE CONSIDERATION OF A PETITION BY THE FAMILY OF THE LATE HAGGAI CHIMAKILE MULATI ON THE ALLEGED KILLING OF HAGGAI CHIMAKILE MULATI BY POLICE OFFICERS/POLICE RESERVISTS

DIRECTORATE OF COMMITTEE SERVICES
CLERK'S CHAMBERS
PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS
NAIROBI

JUNE, 2017

Table of contents

1.0 PREFACE
1.1 Mandate of the Committee
1.2 Committee subjects
1.3 Oversight
1.4 Members of the Committee
1 .5 Recommendations
2.0 INTRODUCTION11
3.0 SUBMISSIONS12
3.1 Submission by the Hon Chris Wamalwa, MP on behalf of the petitioners 12
3.2 Submissions by the Cabinet Secretary Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government
3.3 Submissions by the Independent Policing Oversight Authority
4.0 COMMITTEE OBSERVATIONS
5.0 COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION15

Chairperson's foreword

The Petition by the family of the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati on the alleged killing of Haggai Chimakile Mulati by police officers/ reservists was tabled before the House pursuant to Standing Order No. 225 (2) (a) by Hon. Chris Wamalwa, MP on behalf of the petitioners.

In considering the Petition, the Committee held meetings with the Hon. Chris Wamalwa, MP. The Committee also received submissions for the Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government and the Independent Policing Oversight Authority the meeting and submissions were aimed at responding to the issues raised in the petition.

The Committee is thankful to the Office of the Speaker and the Clerk of the National Assembly for the logistical and technical support accorded to it during its Sittings. The Committee is also thankful to the Hon. Chris Wamalwa, MP, the Independent Policing Oversight Authority and the Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government for the submissions they made.

On behalf of the Committee, and pursuant to Standing Order, 227 it is my pleasant duty to table the Report of the Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security on the alleged killing of Haggai Chimakile Mulati by police officers/reservists

The Hon. Asman Kamama, MGH, OGW, MP Chairperson Departmental Committee Administration and National Security

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to respond to the prayers sought by the family of the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati on his alleged killing by police officers/ reservists. In considering the petition, the Committee held meetings with the Hon. Chris Wamalwa, MP, behalf of the petitioners. The Committee also received submissions for the Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government and the Independent Policing Oversight Authority. Through the oral and written submissions the Committee responded to the issues raised in the petition.

The Committee noted that the circumstances leading to the death of Mr. Haggai Chimakile were unclear and required further investigations. Further the Independent Policing Oversight Authority was seized of the matter and investigations on the same were on going and the case file would be forwarded to the Director of Public Prosecution once the investigations were completed.

Committee recommends that the Independent Policing Oversight Authority should expedite investigations into the death of Haggai Mulati Chimakile and submit a progress report to the Committee within twenty-one (21) days from the date of this Report. The Committee also recommends to the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Lands, Housing and Urban Development that the National Land Commission should investigate the ownership of Luore Nyoio farm LR 34610/7 situated within Kitale town.

1.0 PREFACE

1.1 Mandate of the Committee

The Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security is established pursuant to the provisions of Standing Order No. 216 (1) and (5) with the following terms of reference:-

- (i) make reports and recommendations to the House as often as possible, including recommendation of proposed legislation;
- (ii) to investigate, inquire into, and report on all matters relating to the mandate, management, activities, administration, operations and estimates of the assigned Ministries and departments;
- (iii)to study the programme and policy objectives of Ministries and departments and the effectiveness of the implementation;
- (iv)to study, access and analyze the relative success of the Ministries and departments as measured by the results obtained as compared with their stated objectives;
- (v) to investigate and inquire into all matters relating to the assigned Ministries and departments as they may deem necessary, and as may be referred to them by the House or a Minister.
- (vi)study and review all legislation referred to it

1.2 Committee subjects

The Committee is mandated to consider the following subjects:-

- i. National security
- ii. Police services
- iii. Public Administration
- iv. Public Service
- v. Prisons
- vi. Immigration
- vii. management of natural disasters

1.3 Oversight

In executing its mandate, the Committee oversees the following Government Departments and agencies, namely: -

- i. The Presidency
- ii. The State Department of Interior
- iii. The State Department for Coordination of National Government
- iv. The Public Service Commission,

NA: DC Administration and National Security Report on the consideration of a petition by the family of the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati on the alleged killing of Haggai Chimakile Mulati by the police/police reservists

- v. The National Police Service Commission
- vi. The Independent Police Oversight Authority

NA: DC Administration and National Security Report on the consideration of a petition by the family of the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati on the alleged killing of Haggai Chimakile Mulati by the police/police reservists

1.4 Members of the Committee

Chairperson The Hon. Asman Kamama, MGH, OGW, MP

Vice Chairperson The Hon. Alois M. Lentoimaga, MP

Members The Hon. Joseph Lekuton, MP

The Hon. Alice Wahome, MP

The Hon. Zakayo K. Cheruiyot, MP

The Hon. Timothy W. Wetangula, MP

The Hon. Patrick Ole Ntutu, MP

The Hon. Ali Isaack Shaaban, MP

The Hon. Samuel Moroto, MP

The Hon. (Dr.) Humphrey Njuguna, MP

The Hon. Francis K. Mwangangi, MP

The Hon. Rashid J. Bedzimba, MP

The Hon. David Gikaria, MP

The Hon. Mohamed Shidiye, MP

The Hon. Jane Machira, MP

The Hon. Ibrahim Abdi Saney, MP

The Hon. Joseph O. Ndiege, MP

The Hon. Wanjiku Muhia, MP

The Hon. Akuja Protus Ewesit, MP

The Hon. Joseph M. Kahangara, MP

The Hon. Grace Kiptui, MP

The Hon. George Theuri, MP

The Hon. James Bett, MP

The Hon. Benard Shinali, MP

The Hon Charles Nyamai, MP

The Hon Fatuma Ibrahim Ali, MP

The Hon. (Dr.) Makali Mulu, MP

The Hon Peter Kaluma, MP

The Hon. James Opiyo Wandayi, MP

Committee Secretariat

Clerk Assistant IMr. Leonard MachiraClerk Assistant IIMs. Rose M. WanjohiClerk Assistant IIIMs. Hellen LokwangLegal Counsel IIMs. Christine Odhiambo

Researcher III Ms. Fiona Musili

Fiscal Analyst III Mr. Edison Odhiambo

1.5 Recommendations

In response to the prayers by the petitioners, the Committee recommends that: -

- 1. The Independent Policing Oversight Authority should expedite investigations into the death of Haggai Mulati Chimakile and submit a progress report to the Committee within twenty-one (21) days from the date of this Report.
- 2. The Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Lands, Housing and Urban Development through the National Land Commission investigates the ownership of Luore Nyoio farm LR 34610/7 situated within Kitale town.

2.0 INTRODUCTION

- 2.1 The Petitioners wished to draw to the attention of the House on the following, that:
 - On 27th January 2017, while herding cattle at his father's home in Meso farm in Kiminini Constituency, the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati of ID NO. 32882209 was allegedly shot dead by Police/Kenya Police Reservists(KPR) under mysterious circumstances;
 - ii. It was alleged that the young man met his death in an attack by the Police/KPR who were evicting residents of Meso Farm due to a land dispute;
- iii. This eviction was being conducted without the knowledge or involvement of the area Chief or local administration;
- iv. The killing was a gross violation of article 26(3) of the Constitution on right to life;
- v. Efforts to address and resolve the matter had been futile; and
- vi. The issues in respect of the Petition were not pending before any court of law, tribunal, constitutional or legal body.

The petitioners prayed that the National Assembly, through the Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security

- Recommends that the National Police Commission and the Independent Policing Oversight Authority(IPOA) investigates the circumstances behind the alleged killing and recommend necessary action including bringing those culpable to book;
- Recommends that the National Land Commission looks into the matter of Meso Land dispute and makes the necessary recommendations;
- iii. Recommends that the National Police Service Commission and IPOA look into the matter of compensation for the bereaved family for their loss; and
- Makes any other order or direction that it deems fir in the circumstances of the cases

3.0 SUBMISSIONS

3.1 Submission by the Hon Chris Wamalwa, MP on behalf of the petitioners

The Committee held a meeting with the Hon Chris Wamalwa, MP on 21st March 2017. During the meeting, the Honourable member informed the Committee that on 27th January 2017, while herding cattle at his father's home in Meso Farm in Kiminini Constituency, Haggai Chimakile Mulati of was shot dead by Police/Kenya Police Reservists (KPR) under mysterious circumstances.

It was alleged that the deceased met his death in an attack by the Police/KPR who were evicting residents of Meso Farm due to a land dispute. He added that the eviction was being conducted without the knowledge or involvement of the area Chief or local administration

The Hon. Chris Wamalwa, MP requested that Committee fast tracks the investigations by the Independent Policing Oversight Authority (IPOA) on the circumstances behind the alleged killing and recommend necessary action including bringing those culpable to book.

3.2 Submissions by the Cabinet Secretary Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government

The Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government in written submissions stated that on 27th January, 2017 at about 9:30am the Officer in Charge Crime Branch Kitale Police Station received a call from Mr. Barry Odongo Okundi, Director, Luore Nyoio Limited. Mr. Barry Odongo claimed that 200-armed people had invaded the company owned farm LR No. 34610/7 situated within Kitale Municipality and set ablaze a store containing shelled maize and killed four sheep. Police officers, accompanied by Police Reservists proceeded to the farm to calm the situation down and found the grain store on fire. They requested the over 200 rowdy youth armed with pangas and other weapons due to a court order, case no. 111 of 2008. However a section of the crowd started pelting the police with stones.

During the ensuing melee, two officers including IP Jane Dalidi were injured and treated at Cheranganyi Nursing Home while motor vehicle registration Number GK A118G was damaged. Unfortunately Mr. Haggai Mulati who was one of the attackers was fatally injured by a stray bullet and his body removed to Kiminini Cottage Hospital Mortuary. Another alleged attacker, Mr. Stephen Wekesa sustained injuries and was taken to Cheranganyi Nursing Home where he was treated and discharged.

The District Criminal Investigation Officer, Kitale commenced investigations into the incident and all firearms used during the violent confrontation were retrieved from the officers and taken to Directorate of Criminal Investigations Ballistics section for examination. Pursuant to the investigations, Inquest File No. 1/2017 was opened and is pending investigations.

3.3 Submissions by the Independent Policing Oversight Authority

The Independent Policing Oversight Authority in written submission dated Thursday 25th May 2017, informed the Committee that it commenced investigations into the death of Haggai Mulati Chimakile after the incident was highlighted in the media and receiving a formal complaint through the Kenya National Commission on Human Rights. The Committee was further informed that a team of officers from the Authority visited the scene on 1st February 2017 and recorded statement from five witnesses. The Authority also obtained medical report of three persons who were injured during the incident.

The Authority further stated that investigations on the matter were on going and the file would be forwarded to the Director of Public Prosecutions once the investigations were completed.

4.0 COMMITTEE OBSERVATIONS

The Committee made the following observations from evidence adduced in the meetings, that:-

- 1. The circumstances leading to the death of Mr. Haggai Chimakile were unclear and required further investigations.
- 2. The Independent Policing Oversight Authority was seized of the matter and investigations on the same were on going and the file would be forwarded to the Director of Public Prosecution once the investigations were completed.
- 3. The ownership of Luore Nyoio farm LR 34610/7 situated within Kitale town appeared to be the main cause of conflict and confrontation leading to the death of Mr. Haggai Chimakile.

6.0 COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

In response to the prayers by the petitioners, the Committee recommends that: -

- 1. The Independent Policing Oversight Authority should expedite investigations into the death of Haggai Mulati Chimakile and submit a progress report to the Committee within twenty-one (21) days from the date of this Report.
- 2. The Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Lands, Housing and Urban Development through the National Land Commission investigates the ownership of Luore Nyoio farm LR 34610/7 situated within Kitale town.

Signed Callanda, town and Date 13 06 2017

Hon. Asman Kamama, MGH, OGW, MP

Chairman, Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security

We, Members of the Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security have pursuant to Standing Order 227 (2) adopted this report on the consideration of a Petition by the family of late Haggai Chimakile Mulati, resident of Kiminini Constituency, by the police/Kenya police reservist and affix our signatures to confirm our approval and confirm its accuracy, validity and authenticity on A.M. as per the attached adoption list.

assa

1. The Hon. Asman Kamama, MGH, OGW, MP - Chairperson

2. The Hon. Alois M. Lentoimaga, MP-Vice Chairperson

3. The Hon. Joseph Lekuton, MP

4. The Hon. Alice Wahome, MP

5. The Hon. Zakayo K. Cheruiyot, MP

6. The Hon. Timothy W. Wetangula, MP

7. The Hon. Patrick Ole Ntutu, MP

8. The Hon, Ali Isaack Shaaban, MP

9. The Hon. Samuel Moroto, MP

10. The Hon. (Dr.) Humphrey Njuguna, MP

11. The Hon. Francis K. Mwangangi, MP

12. The Hon, Rashid J. Bedzimba, MP

13. The Hon, David Gikaria, MP

14. The Hon. Mohamed Shidiye, MP

15. The Hon. Jane Machira, MP	If Aprils-
16. The Hon. Charles Nyamai, MP	
17. The Hon. Joseph O. Ndiege, MP	- Three
18. The Hon. Wanjiku Muhia, MP	Buia
19. The Hon. Akuja Protus Ewesit, MP	
20. The Hon. Joseph M. Kahangara, MP	from the second
21. The Hon. Ibrahim Saney, MP	
22.The Hon. Grace Kiptui, MP	
23. The Hon. George Theuri, MP	
24. The Hon. James Bett, MP	
25. The Hon. Benard Shinali, MP	
26. The Hon. Fatuma Ibrahim Ali	
27.The Hon. (Dr.) Makali Mulu, MP	
28. The Hon. Peter Kaluma, MP	m
29.The Hon. James Opiyo Wandayi	

MINUTES OF THE 29TH SITTING OF THE DEPARTMENTAL COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND NATIONAL SECURITY HELD ON FRIDAY, 26TH MAY, 2017 AT SERENA HOTEL, MOMBASA AT 3.00 P.M.

PRESENT

1. The Hon. Alois Lentoimaga, MP

Vice Chairperson

Chairperson

- 2. The Hon. David Gikaria, MP
- 3. The Hon. Alice Wahome, MP
- 4. The Hon. Wanjiku Muhia, MP
- 5. The Hon. Opiyo Wandayi, MP
- 6. The Hon. Peter Kaluma, MP
- 7. The Hon. James Bett, MP
- 8. The Hon. Protus Akuja Ewesit, MP
- 9. The Hon. Joseph Lekuton, MP
- 10. The Hon. Mohamed Shidiye, MP
- 11. The Hon. Samuel Moroto, MP
- 12. The Hon. Zakayo Cheruiyot, MP
- 13. The Hon. Rashid Bedzimba, MP
- 14. The Hon. Jane Machira, MP
- 15. The Hon. Joseph Kahangara, MP

APOLOGIES

- 1. The Hon. Asman Kamama, MGH, OGW, MP
- 2. The Hon. Dr. Makali Mulu, MP
- 3. The Hon. Fatuma Ibrahim Ali, MP
- 4. The Hon. Francis Mwangangi, MP
- 5. The Hon. Grace Kiptui, MP
- 6. The Hon. Benard Shinali, MP
- 7. The Hon. Charles Nyamai, MP
- 8. The Hon. Dr. Humphrey Njuguna, MP
- 9. The Hon. George Theuri, MP
- 10. The Hon. Joseph Ndiege, MP
- 11. The Hon. Ibrahim Abdi Saney, MP
- 12. The Hon. Shaaban Ali Isaack, MP
- 13. The Hon. Patrick Ole Ntutu, MP
- 14. The Hon. Timothy Wetangula, MP

IN ATTENDANCE- NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

1. The Hon. Kimani Ichungwa, MP

2. The Hon. Sunjeev Birdi, MP

COMMITTEE SECRETARIAT

Mrs. Florence Abonyo
 Mr. Leonard Machira
 Ms. Rose Wanjohi
 Ms. Hellen Lokwang
 Ms. Christine Odhiambo
 Ms. Fiona Musili
 Director Committees
 First Clerk Assistant I
 Clerk Assistant II
 Legal Counsel II
 Researcher III

MIN.NO.140 /ANS/2017 - PRELIMINARIES

The Chairperson called the meeting to order at 3.30 p.m. Aprayer was said

MIN.NO. 141/ANS/2017 - CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

The agenda was deferred to the next meeting.

MIN.NO. 142/ANS/2017 - MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

MIN.NO.143 /ANS/2017 - CONSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT REPORT ON PETITION BY SUK COMMUNITY REGARDING ALLEGED ILLEGAL EXISTECE OF NUMEROUS POLICE POSTS AND BARRIERS ALONG THE BORDER BETWEEN WEST POKOT AND TRAS NZOIA COUNTIES.

The Committee adopted the report and recommended that the Ministry of Interior should upgrade the existing police posts to stations and relocated the Anti stock Theft Police Unit training camp form its current location at the border of West Pokot and Trans Nzoia

The Committee further recommended that the Ministry of Interior should transfer police officers who have overstayed in West Pokot and Trans Nzoia Counties to other stations.

The Committee also recommended that the issue of allocation of land in the Chepchoina settlement scheme should be investigated by the National Land Commission

MIN.NO.144 /ANS/2017 - CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT REPORT ON PETITION BY LATE ERIC MUTHOMI REGARDING A COMPENSATION OF A FORMER POLICE OFFICER'S FAMILY (LATE ERIC MUTHOMI).

The Committee unanimously adopted the report and recommended that the Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government should release work injury compensation dues

amounting to Kenya Shillings one million, nine hundred seventy thousand and four hundred (Kshs.1, 970,400) and applicable statutory accrued interest as contained in claim number WIBA/MSPAIS/131 to the family of Mr. Eric Muthomi Mugiri (deceased) within three (3) months from the date of the Report.

MIN.NO.145 /ANS/2017 - CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT REPORT ON PETITION BY FAMILY OF THE LATE HAGGAI CHIMAKILE A RESIDENT OF MESO FARM BY KENYA POLICE/POLICE RESERVISTS UNDER UNCLEAR CIRCUMSTANCES.

The Committee unanimously adopted the report and recommended that: -

- 1. The Independent Policing Oversight Authority should expedite investigations into the death of Haggai Mulati Chimakile and submit a progress report to the Committee within twenty-one (21) days from the date of this Report.
- 2. The Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Lands, Housing and Urban Development through the National Land Commission investigates the ownership of Luore Nyoio farm LR 34610/7 situated within Kitale town.

MIN.NO.146 /ANS/2017THE REGISTRATION OF PERSONS (AMENDMENT) BILL, 2017-HON. ALI WARIO

The Committee observed that the proposed Bill appears to be retrogressive since it extends the timeline for the issuance of identity cards, from thirty days to three months.

ADJOURNMENT OF THE MEETING

Recommendation:

MIN.NO. 147/ANS/2017

The Committee recommended that Bill should not proceed for publication

There being no other business the meeting was adjourned at 5.20 p.m. and the next meeting will
be held on notice.
Signed(Chairperson)
Date

MINUTES OF THE $20^{\rm TH}$ SITTING OF THE DEPARTMENTAL COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND NATIONAL SECURITY HELD ON TUESDAY, $21^{\rm ST}$ MARCH, 2017 IN COMMITTEE ROOM, $2^{\rm ND}$ FLOOR PROTECTION HOUSE AT 10.00 A.M.

PRESENT

1. The Hon. Asman Kamama, MGH, OGW, MP

Chairperson

Vice Chairperson

- 2. The Hon. Alois Lentoimaga, MP
- 3. The Hon. Alice Wahome, MP
- 4. The Hon. Mohamed Shidiye, MP
- 5. The Hon. Zakayo Cheruiyot, MP
- 6. The Hon. Grace Kiptui, MP
- 7. The Hon. Samuel Moroto, MP
- 8. The Hon. Francis Mwangangi, MP
- 9. The Hon. Joseph Ndiege, MP
- 10. The Hon. Protus Akuja Ewesit, MP
- 11. The Hon. Charles Nyamai, MP
- 12. The Hon. Wanjiku Muhia, MP
- 13. The Hon. George Theuri, MP
- 14. The Hon. Opiyo Wandayi, MP

APOLOGIES

- 1. The Hon. Peter Kaluma, MP
- 2. The Hon. Dr. Humphrey Njuguna, MP
- 3. The Hon. James Bett, MP
- 4. The Hon. David Gikaria, MP
- 5. The Hon. Fatuma Ibrahim Ali, MP
- 6. The Hon. Ibrahim Abdi Saney, MP
- 7. The Hon. Joseph Lekuton, MP
- 8. The Hon. Shaaban Ali Isaack, MP
- 9. The Hon. Patrick Ole Ntutu, MP
- 10. The Hon. Benard Shinali, MP
- 11. The Hon. Joseph Kahangara, MP
- 12. The Hon. Dr. Makali Mulu, MP
- 13. The Hon. Rashid Bedzimba, MP
- 14. The Hon. Jane Machira, MP
- 15. The Hon. Timothy Wetangula, MP

IN ATTENDANCE

COMMITTEE SECRETARIAT

Mr. Leonard Machira
 Ms. Rose M. Wanjohi
 Ms. Chritine Odhiambo
 Clerk Assistant II
 Legal Counsel

4. Mr. Eric Gachoki - Research Officer III

MIN. NO. 091 /ANS/2017 - PRELIMINARIES

The Chairperson called the meeting to order at 10.30 a.m. A prayer was said.

MIN.NO.092 /ANS/2017 - CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Minutes of the 1st Sitting of the Committee were confirmed as a true record of proceedings as proposed by Hon. George Theuri, MP and seconded by Hon. Joseph Ndiege, MP.

Minutes of the 2nd-Sitting of the Committee were confirmed as a true record of proceedings as proposed by Hon. Alice Wahome, MP and seconded by Hon. Wanjiku Muhia, MP.

Minutes of the 3rd Sitting of the Committee were confirmed as a true record of proceedings as proposed by Hon. Zakayo Cheruiyot, MP and seconded by Hon. George Theuri, MP.

Minutes of the 4th Sitting of the Committee were-confirmed as a true record of proceedings as proposed by Hon. Wanjiku Muhia, MP and seconded by Hon Zakayo Cheruiyot, MP.

Minutes of the 5th Sitting of the Committee were confirmed as a true record of proceedings as proposed by Hon. Protus Akujah, MP and seconded by Hon Alois Lentoimaga, MP.

Minutes of the 6th Sitting of the Committee were confirmed as a true record of proceedings as proposed by Hon. Alice Wahome, MP and seconded by Hon. Charles Nyamai, MP.

Minutes of the 7th Sitting of the Committee were confirmed as a true record of proceedings as proposed by Hon. Grace Kiptui MP and seconded by Hon. Protus Akuja, MP.

Minutes of the 8th Sitting of the Committee were confirmed as a true record of proceedings as proposed by Hon. Charles Nyamai, MP and seconded by Hon. George Theuri, MP.

Minutes of the 9th Sitting of the Committee were confirmed as a true record of proceedings as proposed by Hon. Protus Akuja, MP and seconded by Hon. Alice Wahome, MP.

Minutes of the 10th Sitting of the Committee were confirmed as a true record of proceedings as proposed by Hon. Francis Mwangangi, MP and seconded by Hon. Protus Akuja, MP.

MIN.NO. 093/ANS/2017 - MEETING WITH HON. MUTHOMI NJUKI, MP ON A PETITION BY THE FAMILY OF THE LATE ERIC MUTHOMI MUGIRI ON WORK INJURY BENEFIT CLAIM FOR THE ERIC MUTHOMI (DECEASED)

The Committee was informed that:-

- i. In 2007, the late Eric Muthomi Mugiri, Personal No. 90280/2007/102455 was appointed as a police constable in the National Police Service Commission on permanent and pensionable basis;
- ii. On 31st January 2009 while in line of duty, Mr. Eric Mugiri died of injuries sustained at the infamous Sachangwan Petrol Tanker fire accident;
- iii. Following the death of the officer and in line with existing policies, the Ministry of Labour and Social Protection computed his work benefit claim on 30th June 2011, the matter having been considered as claim number WIBA/MSPAIS/131 amounting to Kenya Shillings one million, nine hundred seventy thousand, four hundred(Kshs.1,970,400);
- iv. To date the family had not received any compensation as stipulated in the Work Injury Benefit Act No.3 of 2007
- v. Efforts to resolve the matter with the relevant bodies/agencies have been futile;
- vi. The issues in respect of which this petition is made are not pending before any court of law, constitutional or statutory body.

The petitioners prayed that the National Assembly through the Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security

- i. Intervenes to ensure that the family of Mr. Eric Mugiri is fully compensated for the loss of their son who served as General Service Unit Officer and died in line of duty serving this Country; and
- ii. Makes any other order(s) it deems fit in the circumstances of the petitioner.

Committee Observation

The Committee observed that the matter had been pending for a long time and required urgent conclusion.

Committee Recommendation

The Committee recommended that the Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government should expedite the release of compensation dues to the family of Mr. Eric Mugiria's stipulated in the Work Injury Benefit Act No.3 of 2007

MIN.NO. 094/ANS/2017 - MEETING WITH HON. CHRIS WAMALWA, MP ON A PETITION ON THE ALLEGED KILLING OF THE LATE HAGGAI CHIMAKILE MULATI, RESIDENT OF KIMININI CONSTITUENCY BY THE POLICE/KENYA POLICE RESERVISTS

The Committee was informed that:-

- i. On 27th January 2017, while herding cattle at his father's home in Meso farm in Kiminini Constituency, the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati of ID NO. 32882209 was allegedly shot dead by Police/Kenya Police Reservists(KPR) under mysterious circumstances;
- ii. It was alleged that the young man met his death in an attack by the Police/KPR who were evicting residents of Meso Farm due to a land dispute;
- iii. This eviction was being conducted without the knowledge or involvement of the area Chief or local administration;
- iv. The killing was a gross violation of article 26(3) of the Constitution on right to life;
- v. Efforts to address and resolve the matter had been futile; and
- vi. The issues in respect of the Petition were not pending before any court of law, tribunal, constitutional or legal body.

The petitioners prayed that the National Assembly, through the Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security

- i. Recommends that the National Police Commission and the Independent Policing Oversight Authority(IPOA) investigates the circumstances behind the alleged killing and recommend necessary action including bringing those culpable to book;
- ii. Recommends that the National Land Commission looks into the matter of Meso Land dispute and makes the necessary recommendations;
- iii. Recommends that the National Police Service Commission and IPOA look into the matter of compensation for the bereaved family for their loss; and
- iv. Makes any other order or direction that it deems fir in the circumstances of the cases

Submissions by the Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government

The Committee noted that the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Interior and Coordination of National Government in written submissions stated that on 27th January, 2017 at about 930 am the Officer in Charge crime branch Kitale Police Station received a call from Mr. Barry Odongo Okundi, director, Luore Nyoio Limited. Mr. Barry Odongo claimed that 200 armed people had invaded the company owned farm LR No. 34610/7 situated within Kitale Municipality and set a blaze store containing shelled maize and killed four sheep. Police officers, accompanied by Police reservists proceeded to the farm to calm the situation down and found the grain store on fire. They informed the over 200 rowdy youth armed with pangas and other crude weapons that there was a court order, case no. 111 of 2008 to maintain the status quo. However a section of the crowd started pelting the police with stones.

During the ensuing melee, two officers including IP Jane Dalidi were injured and treated at Cheranganyi Nursing Home. A motor vehicle registration Number GK A118G was damaged. Unfortunately Mr. Haggai Mulati who was one of the attackers was fatally injured by a stray bullet and his body removed to Kiminini Cottage Hospital Mortuary. Another alleged attacker, Mr. Stephen Wekesa sustained injuries and was taken to Cheranganyi Nursing Home where he was treated and discharged.

The District Criminal Investigation Officer, Kitale commenced investigations into the incident and all firearms used during the violent confrontation were retrieved from the officers and taken to Directorate of Criminal Investigations Ballistics section for examination. Pursuant to the investigations Inquest File No. 1/2017 was opened and is pending investigations.

Committee Observation

The Committee observed that the circumstances leading to the death of Mr. Haggai Chimakile were unclear and required further investigations.

Committee Recommendations

The Committee recommended that:-

- i. The Independent Policing Oversight Authority investigates the death of Mr. Haggai Chimakile;
- ii. The Committee resolved to form a sub-committee to conduct a site visit in the area where the shooting occurred and
- iii. The Committee resolved to invite Mr. Barry Odongo Okundi, director, Luore Nyoio Limited for a meeting with the Committee to provide details into the shooting incident.

MIN.NO.095 /ANS/2017

ADJOURNMENT OF THE MEETING

There being no other business the meeting was adjourned at 11.20 a.m. and the next meeting will be held on notice.



THE NATIONAL ASSEMBLY ELEVENTH PARLIAMENT (FIFTH SESSION)

PUBLIC PETITION

ON THE ALLEGED KILLING OF THE LATE HAGGAI CHIMAKILE MULATI, RESIDENT OF KIMININI CONSTITUENCY, BY THE POLICE/KENYA POLICE RESERVIST

I, the undersigned on behalf of the family of the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati, a resident of Meso Farm in Kiminini Constituency, Trans Nzoia County,

DRAW the attention of the House to the following: -

- i. THAT, on 27th January 2017, while herding cattle at his father's home in Meso Farm in Kiminini Constituency, the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati of ID number 32882209 was allegedly shot dead by the Police/Kenya Police Reservists (KPR) under mysterious circumstances;
- ii. THAT, it is alleged that the young man met his death in an attack by the Police/KPR who were evicting residents of Meso Farm due to a land dispute;
- iii. THAT, this eviction was being conducted without the knowledge or involvement of the area Chief or local administration;
- iv. THAT, this killing is a gross violation of Article 26 (3) of the Constitution on the right to life;
- v. THAT, efforts to address and resolve the matter have been futile;
- vi. THAT, the issues in respect of which this Petition is made are not pending before any court of law, tribunal, constitutional or legal body;

THEREFORE your humble petitioners pray that the National Assembly, through the Departmental Committee on Administration and National Security:-

(i) Recommends that the National Police Service Commission and the Independent Policing Oversight Authority (IPOA) investigate the

circumstances behind the alleged killing and recommend necessary action including bringing those culpable to book;

- (ii) Recommends that the National Land Commission looks into the matter of the Meso land dispute and makes the necessary recommendations;
- (iii)Recommends that the National Police Service Commission and IPOA look into matters of compensation for the bereaved family for their loss;
- (iv)Makes any other order or direction that it deems fit in the circumstances of the case.

And your humble Petitioners will ever pray.

PRESENTED BY

HON. CHRIS WAMALWA, MP

MEMBER FOR KIMININI CONSTITUENCY

DATE: 1/2/17

Death of the Late 27-1-20
Thaggai Chimakile Mulati
15 No. 32882209 40B 1994
olied of two bullets

Desther:
Joseph Mulati Wamoda

1.b. No-7592662

Phone No-0724365410

Sign- &

(3) Family Spokes man (borother to dai Hon. John Weyusia Nanyakha McA We Mihuy Ward, Bungons 11 No. 11564221 Phone 0723540944 Sign: To Kha

PETITION ON THE SHOOTING OF THE LATE HAGGAI CHIMAKILE MULATI

The Member of Parliament for Kiminini Constituency, Honourable Chris Wamalwa, has petitioned the National Assembly on the alleged killing of the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati, a resident of Meso farm in Kiminini Constituency, Trans Nzoia County. The Honourable Member has drawn the attention of the House to the following:-

- i. That on 27th January, 2017, while herding cattle at his father's home in Meso farm, the late Haggai was allegedly shot dead by either a police officer or a police reservist;
- ii. That it is alleged that the young man met his death during the eviction of residents in the farm due to a land dispute;
- iii. That this eviction was being conducted without the knowledge or involvement of the of the area chief or local administration;
- iv. That the killing is a gross violation of Article 26(3) of the Constitution on the right of life;
- v. That efforts to address and resolve the matter have been futile;
- vi. That the issues in respect of which this petition is made are not pending before any court of law, tribunal, constitutional or legal body.

I wish to state as follows:

On 27th January, 2017 at about 9.30am, No. 235337 IP Jane Dalidi who is the officer in-charge Crime Branch Kitale Police station was on duty in the station when she received a call from Mr. Barry Odongo Okundi of Box 43417-0610C, Nairobi, mobile number 0712452107 who claimed to be a director of Luore Nyoiro Limited. The caller claimed that the company owned a parcel of land LR No.34610/7 situated within Kitale Municipality. He further informed that over 200 armed people had invaded the farm and set on fire a store containing shelled maize and killed four sheep.

The officers, accompanied by National Police Reservists proceeded to the scene where they found a grain store on fire and a crowd of over 200 rowdy people who were armed with pangas and other crude weapons. The officers tried to calm down the crowd by informing them that there was a court order in force which directed that the status quo be maintained vide civil case No.111 of 2008 before the High court. However, a section of the crowd started pelting the police with stones.

During the ensuing melee, two officers were injured and rushed to Cheranganyi Nursing Home for treatment; IP. Dalidi sustained injuries on the left side ribs, nasal bridge and both knees, was treated and discharged while Sgt. Peter Kariuki suffered deep panga cuts, was admitted and discharged after four days. A motor vehicle, registration number GK A118G Canter was damaged. Unfortunately, Mr. Haggai Mulati, who was one of the attackers, was fatally injured by a stray bullet and the body removed to Kiminini Cottage Hospital Mortuary pending post mortem. Another attacker, Stephen Wekesa, sustained injuries and was taken to Cheranganyi Nursing Home where he was treated and discharged.

The DCIO Kitale commenced investigations into the incident and all firearms used during the violent confrontation were retrieved from the officers and taken to Directorate of Criminal Investigations Ballistics section for examination. Pursuant to the investigations Inquest File No.1/2017 was opened and is pending investigations.

HON. MAJ. GEN. (RTD) JOSEPH NKAISSERRY, EGH, CBS

CABINET SECRETARY

MINISTRY OF INTERIOR AND

COORDINATION OF NATIONAL GOVERNMENT

PETITION ON THE SHOOTING OF THE LATE HAGGAI CHIMAKILE MULATI

The Member of Parliament for Kiminini Constituency, Honourable Chris Wamalwa, has petitioned the National Assembly on the alleged killing of the late Haggai Chimakile Mulati, a resident of Meso farm in Kiminini Constituency, Trans Nzoia County. The Honourable Member has drawn the attention of the House to the following:-

- i. That on 27th January, 2017, while herding cattle at his father's home in Meso farm, the late Haggai was allegedly shot dead by either a police officer or a police reservist;
- ii. That it is alleged that the young man met his death during the eviction of residents in the farm due to a land dispute;
- iii. That this eviction was being conducted without the knowledge or involvement of the of the area chief or local administration;
- iv. That the killing is a gross violation of Article 26(3) of the Constitution on the right of life;
- v. That efforts to address and resolve the matter have been futile;
- vi. That the issues in respect of which this petition is made are not pending before any court of law, tribunal, constitutional or legal body.

I wish to state as follows:

On 27th January, 2017 at about 9.30am, No. 235337 IP Jane Dalidi who is the officer in-charge Crime Branch Kitale Police station was on duty in the station when she received a call from Mr. Barry Odongo Okundi of Box 43417-00100, Nairobi, mobile number 0712452107 who claimed to be a director of Luore Nyoiro Limited. The caller claimed that the company owned a parcel of land LR No.34610/7 situated within Kitale Municipality. He further informed that over 200 armed people had invaded the farm and set on fire a store containing shelled maize and killed four sheep.

The officers, accompanied by National Police Reservists proceeded to the scene where they found a grain store on fire and a crowd of over 200 rowdy people who were armed with pangas and other crude weapons. The officers tried to calm down the crowd by informing them that there was a court order in force which directed that the status quo be maintained vide civil case No.111 of 2008 before the High court. However, a section of the crowd started pelting the police with stones.

During the ensuing melee, two officers were injured and rushed to Cheranganyi Nursing Home for treatment; IP. Dalidi sustained injuries on the left side ribs, nasal bridge and both knees, was treated and discharged while Sgt. Peter Kariuki suffered deep panga cuts, was admitted and discharged after four days. A motor vehicle, registration number GK A118G Canter was damaged. Unfortunately, Mr. Haggai Mulati, who was one of the attackers, was fatally injured by a stray bullet and the body removed to Kiminini Cottage Hospital Mortuary pending post mortem. Another attacker, Stephen Wekesa, sustained injuries and was taken to Cheranganyi Nursing Home where he was treated and discharged.

The DCIO Kitale commenced investigations into the incident and all firearms used during the violent confrontation were retrieved from the officers and taken to Directorate of Criminal Investigations Ballistics section for examination. Pursuant to the investigations Inquest File No.1/2017 was opened and is pending investigations.

HON. MAJ. GEN. (RTD) JOSEPH NKAISSERRY, EGH, CBS

CABINET SECRETARY

MINISTRY OF INTERIOR AND

COORDINATION OF NATIONAL GOVERNMENT



IPOA/ADM.F/INV/3 VOL.V IPOA/CMU/250/2017 25th May 2017

Clerk to the National Assembly Parliament Building P.O. Box 41842-00100 NAIROBI

Attention: Mr. Leonard Machira

PETITION REGARDING THE ALLEGED KILLING OF HAGGAI CHIMAKILE MULATI

Reference is made to your letter Ref. No. NA/DC.A/ANS/2017/ (58) dated 17th May 2017 on the above subject matter.

The Authority commenced investigation into the death of Haggai Mulati Chimakile on its own motion after the case was highlighted in the media (Daily Nation 30th January 2017). A complaint on the same matter was also lodged with the Authority through the KNCHR Kitale office on 31st January, 2017. A team of IPOA investigators visited the scene on 1st February, 2017 and recorded statements.

The Authority has so far managed to record statements of three injured persons and two other witnesses. It has also obtained medical treatment notes of three victims, court order enforcing the status quo on the Land - 2009, copy of relevant OB entries, receipts and Medical treatment notes of Sgt. Kariuki who alleged to have been assaulted and injured during the incident.

The Investigations are still on going and once completed the file shall be forwarded to the ODPP for further necessary action.

Thank you.

Yours

Dr. JOEL MABONGA

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/SECRETARY